
MINUTES 
 

Levy County Planning Commission 
April 4, 2005 

6:30 p.m. 
 
 
The Levy County Planning Commission was called to order by Chairman Vaughn Lee.  Other 
members present were: 
 

Toni Collins 
Eugene Pollock 

Ron Grant 
Thadus Barber 

 
Also present was County Attorney Ms. Anne Bast Brown, Development Department Director 
Mr. Rob Corbitt and County Planner Ms. Kathy Winburn. 
 
Chairman Lee called for a motion to either approve or deny the minutes from the March 7, 2005 
regular meeting as presented.  Ms. Collins motioned to approve the minutes, Mr. Pollock 
seconded the motion; motion carried. 
 
Chairman Lee asked Planning Director Ms. Kathy Winburn to present the items of business. 
 
New Business: 
 
PETITION NO.  CPA 05-01 An application by EJD Corporation and Margaret W. Smith 
Irrevocable Trust to amend the Levy County Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map by 
extending the boundaries of the Williston Municipal Service District (MSD) to include 
approximately 78 acres of land west of the current MSD boundaries along U.S. 27A. 
 
Ms. Winburn presented the staff report, including a description of the subject properties and 
surrounding area, and an analysis of urban sprawl indicators she cited the following specific 
comprehensive plan policies that applied to the petition:  policy 1.1 of the Future Land Use 
Element which states the purpose of the MSD and the land use allowed within that district; 
policy 2.1 of the Future Land Use Element which states that densities and intensities of use will 
be coordinated with the availability of public facilities and services; policy 1.11 of the Future 
Land Use Element which states that the County shall promote industrial and commercial 
development; policy 3.1 of the Economic Element which states that future development shall 
provide adequate amounts of land for future development and expansion in suitable locations for 
agricultural/aquaculture, commercial and industrial land uses; policy 4.1 of the Economic 
Element which states that the County will preserve the rural quality of life through the 
coordination of land use and development plans for areas adjacent to municipalities and other 
counties; policy 2.4 of the Transportation Element states that the County will discourage  
 
Page 2 of 4 
PC Minutes – 4/4/05   
     
 
commercial strip development along major highways by limiting community and regional level 
commercial development to areas and nodes designated for commercial land uses.  



 
 
Jim Coleman, City Manager for the City of Williston, stated that at this time the city does not 
have the financial resources available to extend water/sewer to the MSD area.  Mr. Coleman 
further stated that the City currently extends water/sewer within the city limits on an as needed 
basis.   
 
Mr. Jerry McCormick and Mr. Don Nelson, representing EJD Corporation were present to 
discuss this petition.  Mr. Willard Smith, representing Margaret W. Smith Irrevocable Trust was 
present to discuss this petition.  
 
The Board had the following questions or concerns about the petition.  The Board questioned 
whether extension of the MSD could continue if another petition was presented; how far on US 
27A the City of Williston provides water/sewer; whether approving the petition would encourage 
urban sprawl; and the potential for higher density.  Ms. Winburn stated that if a similar 
application was submitted the board would review the petition for consistency with the 
comprehensive plan.  Mr. Coleman stated that water/sewer extended up to Winn Dixie.  Ms. 
Winburn stated that there are indicators that the state sets out to assist in deciding whether urban 
sprawl would be encouraged.          
 
Chairman Lee called for any support from the audience.  Mr. McCormick stated that the City of 
Williston has no room for commercial growth and that they want to be able to provide some type 
of retail business.  Mr. McCormick further stated that this type of business would encourage 
economic growth for Levy County and would help to increase the tax base for the county.  Mr. 
Willard Smith stated that developing the property for a commercial use would benefit both the 
County and the City of Williston with their tax base.  Don Nelson stated that they want to 
provide a commercial development that will support the City of Williston.       
 
Chairman Lee called for any opposition from the audience.  Judy Paradiso stated a concern with 
storm water runoff from a commercial development and the potential harm to the aquifer.  Larry 
Henderson, Wade Bullock and Allen Suggs stated that they would like to see the area remain 
rural.  Jack Halabrin stated that he is concerned with the possible commercial use available and 
that it should be environmentally friendly to the surrounding area.  Paul Curry and Jerry Nichols 
stated a concern with the possible increase in the traffic flow and that they want the area to 
remain rural.  Patty Maloney and Mike Efferson stated that they are opposed to the possible type 
of commercial development.  Dr. Ken Schwiebert stated that if approved the petition property 
would be creating a commercial node.  Robert Lowyns stated that east Williston has commercial 
property available for sale and development and that this area should be considered first before 
extending the MSD.  Jenny Whitner does not want to see area properties included in city limits.   
Page 3 of 4 
PC Minutes – 4/4/05  
 
Fred Easton stated that he is concerned with the effects of possible commercial development on 
the farming.  Rhonda Griffis presented the board with a letter and signed petitions from area 
property owners that are opposed to the petition.  Ms. Griffis stated that the County should utilize 
the area within the existing MSD for commercial development before considering expanding the 
MSD.  Chairman Lee closed the floor to discussion.    
 
 
After a short discussion Chairman Lee called for a motion to this item. Mr. Grant motioned to 
recommend denial of petition CPA 05-01 for transmittal to the Department of Community 



Affairs (DCA) to the Board of County Commissioners for the following reasons; potential for 
urban sprawl to occur and that the amendment is not consistent with the comprehensive plan 
particularly related to the MSD and the purpose thereof.  Mr. Pollock seconded the motion; 
motion carried. All members voted “aye”. 
 
PETITION NO. LSA 05-01 An application by EJD Corporation to amend the Levy County 
Future Land Use Map from Agriculture/Rural Residential (A/RR) to Commercial (C) on 
approximately 40 acres located in Section 34, Township 12 South, Range 18 East.  Related to 
Petition CPA 05-01.  Parcel No’s 4265-000-00, 4265-003-00 and 4266-000-00.  
 
Ms. Winburn presented the staff report and explained that based on policy 1.5 of the Future Land 
Use Element that the approval of petition LSA 05-01 is contingent on the approval of petition 
CPA 05-01, which is to expand the MSD boundaries to include the petition property. 
 
Mr. Jerry McCormick and Mr. Don Nelson, representing EJD Corporation were present to 
discuss this petition.   
 
The Board stated concerns with the environmental elements surrounding the petition property 
and septic systems use.   
 
Chairman Lee asked for anyone in support of the petition.  Chairman Lee called for any 
opposition from the audience.  The board recognized everyone who previously opposed petition 
CPA 05-01 as being opposed to the petition being presented.  Chairman Lee closed the floor to 
discussion.   
 
After a short discussion Chairman Lee called for a motion to this item. Based on the findings and 
analysis contained in the staff report and the testimony presented at this hearing, Ms. Collins 
motioned that the Board recommend to the Board of County Commissioners  to not transmit  
petition LSA 05-01 to the Department of Community Affairs for an Objections, 
Recommendations and Comments report; Mr. Grant seconded the motion; motion carried. All 
members voted “aye”.  
 
 
Page 4 of 4 
PC Minutes – 4/4/05 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – PLANNING DEPARTMENT: 
 
 
1. EAR Workshop April 25, 2005. 
 
Ms. Winburn stated that the Comprehensive Plan Evaluation and Appraisal Report (EAR) 
workshop will be scheduled for April 25, 2005 at 7 p.m. allowing for two weeks of advertising. 
 
Mr. Pollock requested that future meeting times begin at 7 p.m. due to the time change, however, 
if the agenda is a large one the meeting can begin at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Ms. Brown informed the Board that she is preparing a package of information on the sunshine 
law, public records and voting conflicts to possibly present to the Board at the next regular 
meeting.  



 
There being no further business for the Levy County Planning Commission, the meeting was 
adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 
 
 
                                                                     
Chairman 


